

present portion of the institution, recently erected, cost about \$120,000.

Notre Dame des Victoires.

REV. FATHER MOLINIER, Pastor. Location, north side Bush between Dupont and Stockton streets. Services at 7½ A.M. every day. Sundays at 7 and 11 A.M.; also, Vespers at 3½ P.M. The congregation was organized May, 1856, and its splendid edifice dedicated on the fourth of the same month. The building was constructed by a society of Baptists, and at the date above given was disposed of to the present owners. It has a ground base of 50 by 100 feet, is a very beautiful and massive brick structure, and with its basement, which is intended for school rooms connected with the church, has a capacity of comfortably seating seven hundred persons.

Mission Dolores.

REV. JOHN J. PRENDERGAST, Pastor; Rev. Thos. Cushing, assistant. Services at 8 and 11 o'clock A.M., on Sundays and Festivals. This adobe church is located on the south-west corner of Sixteenth and Dolores streets; was dedicated on the 9th of October, 1776, although projected in 1769, by Father Junipero Serra, the Father of the California Missions. The first Friar who had charge was Francisco Palou, who was assisted in his labors by Benito Cambon. At the organization of this Mission, and for its protection, there were fifteen soldiers located at the Presidio, under the command of S. Flores. A cemetery is attached to the church, in which the first interment was made in September, 1776. The first Indian convert was baptized on the 27th December in the same year. In the introductory portion of the San Francisco Directory for 1862, page 5, will be found further details connected with the history of this Mission. Attached to this church is the Seminary of St. Thomas.

St. Joseph's Church.

REV. H. P. GALLAGHER, Pastor; residence next door to the church. Location, Tenth Street, between Folson and Howard. Services on Sundays and Festival days. Mass at 8 o'clock A.M.; High Mass at 11 o'clock A.M.; Catechism at 3 and Vespers at 7 o'clock P.M.; Mass, week days, at 7 o'clock A.M. St. Joseph's Church was opened for divine service on the 8th day of December, 1861. The building is a neat and substantial one story frame, 60 feet long by 37 feet wide, and stands on the 100 vara lot donated by Horace Hawes, Esq., for the future Cathedral of the Arch Diocese.

St. Rose's Church.

Pastor—(Vacant.) Attended from the Cathedral. Location, Bryant Street. Mass: Sundays, at 8 o'clock A.M. St. Rose's Church was dedicated on the Festival of Pentecost, June 8th, 1862. There is a vacancy in the Pastorship, which will be in a short time filled. There is connected with the church a school for girls, in charge of the Sisters of St. Dominic, which contained, within one month after its establishment, 156 pupils. There are now more than three hundred girls in regular attendance.

St. Bridget's Church.

REV. JAMES H. AERDEN, Pastor; Rev. E. J. Caldwell, assistant; residence, rear of Church. Location, SW corner Van Ness Avenue and Broadway. The building occupied by this church was completed in February, 1864. It is a one-story wooden structure, 40 by 76 feet, erected upon a valuable lot purchased by Archbishop Alemany, at a cost of \$5,000. Services, Sundays, 8 and 11 A.M., and 7½ P.M.; week days, 7 A.M. The services for the burial of the dead at Calvary Cemetery, is attended by

the clergymen of St. Bridget's Church, from 3 to 5 P.M., from March to October, and from 2½ to 4 P.M., from November to April. St. Bridget's Church is the first established in the Western Addition. Services first held in February, 1864.

SWEDENBORGIAN.

New Jerusalem Church.

Public service held every Sabbath morning at 11 o'clock A.M., in the rooms of the Twelfth District Court, City Hall. Administration of the Sacrament of the Lord's Supper, at the residence of Thomas S. Miller, 823 Bush Street, on the first Sundays of January, April, July, and October, at 2½ o'clock P.M.

This society have recently purchased at an expense of \$4,000, a lot 55 by 137½ feet, situated on O'Farrell Street, between Mason and Taylor, on which they intend to erect a building for church purposes.

Officers—Trustees: Thomas S. Miller (President), Joseph Hobart, James Kellogg, C. C. Webb, T. C. Banks, Charles Pace, and J. H. Purkitt; Reader: J. H. Purkitt; Librarian: Dr. A. Kellogg; Superintendent of Sabbath School and Treasurer: Jas. Kellogg.

A library, containing all the Scientific and Theological works of Swedenborg, and a large collection of the collateral works of the New Church, both English and American, is kept at Dr. Kellogg's Drug Store, 517 Jackson Street, above Montgomery.

The Church was organized in 1851.

UNITARIAN.

First Unitarian Church.

REV. HORATIO STEBBINS, Pastor. Location, south side Geary below Stockton. Services Sunday at 11 A.M., and 7½ P.M. Sabbath School, Sunday at 1 P.M. This society was organized September 1, 1850. The first edifice owned by the society was erected in 1852, on Stockton Street between Clay and Sacramento. The first regular pastor, the Rev. Joseph Harrington, arrived August 27th, 1852, and died November 2d of same year, of Panama fever. The second regular pastor, Rev. E. T. Gray, arrived June, 1853, and left in June, 1854, and died in Boston in February, 1855. The third regular pastor, the Rev. R. P. Cutler, arrived August 31, 1854, and continued his ministrations without intermission until June 1, 1859, at which time he resigned his charge, and left for New York. The Rev. John A. Buckingham then officiated as temporary pastor until April 5, 1860. The late pastor, Rev. Thomas Starr King, arrived here with his family, April 28, 1860, and commenced his ministrations the following day, (Sunday) before one of the largest congregations ever assembled in this city. Since the commencement of Mr. King's labors, and during the period of ten months, this society relieved itself of a debt which had been for years accumulating upon them, and which amounted on the first of May, 1860, to very nearly \$20,000.

Though the former church was capable of seating 1,000 persons, and was one of the most attractive places of public worship in the city, it was inadequate to the growing wants of this congregation; and the corner stone of the present edifice was laid, December 3d, 1862, with appropriate ceremonies, and dedicated on the tenth of January, 1864, an immense congregation being in attendance.

The lot measures 112½ feet on Geary Street by 137½ feet in depth. On this lot are erected a church building proper, with a double porch of approach, set back twelve feet from the street, and a school building, set sixty-five feet back, forming a wing to